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DIRECTORS REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

The directors present their report to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2007 and the balance sheet of the Company at 31 December 2007 .

Directors
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Sun Guiji

Sun Kai

Chong Wing Hong

Lai Seng Kwoon

Teo Moh Gin

Loo Choon Chiaw

Dang Zhen Tai (appointed on 1 September 2007)

Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object

was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, other than as disclosed under “Share options” on pages 30 to 32 of this report.

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures

(@) According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the directors holding office at the end of the financial year
had any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations, except as follows:

Holdings registered Holdings in which director
in name of director is deemed to have an interest
At 31 December 2007 At 1 January 2007 At 31 December 2007 At 1 January 2007
The Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
Sun Guiji 312,533,904 312,633,904 = =
Lai Seng Kwoon - - 50,000 50,000

(b) According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, certain directors holding office at the end of the financial year had
interests in options to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company granted pursuant to the China Sun Employee Share
Option Scheme as set out below and under “Share options” on pages 30 to 32 of this report.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007/

Directors’ interests in shares or debentures (continued)

Number of unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.25
each under options held by directors
At 1 January 2007, or
At 31 December 2007 date of appointment, if later

2005 Market Price Options

Chong Wing Hong 140,000 140,000
Dang Zhen Tai 1,320,000 1,320,000
Lai Seng Kwoon 500,000 500,000
Xu Zu Miao * - 1,120,000
2006 Market Price Options

Chong Wing Hong 400,000 400,000
Lai Seng Kwoon 200,000 200,000
Teo Moh Gin 500,000 500,000
2007 Market Price Options

Chong Wing Hong 300,000 -
Dang Zhen Tai 1,000,000 -
Lai Seng Kwoon 200,000 -
Loo Choon Chiaw 500,000 -
Teo Moh Gin 200,000 -

*: Xu Zu Miao resigned as the director of the Company during the financial year.

(¢) Mr Sun Guiji, who by virtue of his interest of not less than 20% of the issued capital of the Company, is deemed to have
an interest in the whole of the share capital of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(d) The directors’ interests in the ordinary shares and convertible securities of the Company as at 21 January 2008 were the
same as those as at 31 December 2007 .

Directors’ contractual benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member or with a
company in which he has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in the accompanying financial statements and
in this report.

Share options
(@ China Sun Employee Share Option Scheme
The China Sun Employee Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) for key management personnel and employees of the

Group was approved by members of the Company on 6 October 2004. The details of the Scheme were set out in the
Company'’s prospectus dated 26 October 2004.
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DIRECTORS REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

Share options (continued)
(@) China Sun Employee Share Option Scheme (continued)

Under the Scheme, options to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company are granted to key management personnel
and full-time employees of the Group. The exercise price of the granted options is either equal to the average of the closing
prices of the Company’s ordinary shares on the Singapore Exchange for the five market days immediately preceding the
date of grant (the “Market Price Option”) or at a price discounted to not more than 20% of the market price as determined
by a committee made up from the board of directors and approved by the shareholders in a general meeting (the “Incentive
Option”). A Market Price Option can be exercised during a period commencing after the first anniversary of the offering
date and expiring on the fifth to tenth anniversary of such offering date. An Incentive Option can be exercised after the
second anniversary of the offering date and expiring on the fifth to tenth anniversary of the offering date. The options may
be exercised in full or in part on the payment of the exercise price. The persons to whom the options have been issued
have no right to participate by virtue of the options in any share issue of any other company within the Group. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash and all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares.

By virtue of an ordinary resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 27 April 2005, the shareholders of the
Company approved amendments to the Scheme to allow participation of all directors (other than controlling shareholders)
and also appointed a Remuneration Committee to administer the Scheme. The Remuneration Committee comprises
4 directors, Loo Choon Chiaw (Chairman), Sun Guiji, Lai Seng Kwoon and Teo Moh Gin. Sun Guiji stepped down as a
member of the Remuneration Committee on 5 March 2007.

The aggregate number of shares over which options may be granted on any date, when added to the number of shares
issued and issuable in respect of all options granted under the Scheme, shall not exceed 15% of the issued share capital
of the Company on the day preceding that date.

The Scheme become operative upon the Company granting Market Price Option to subscribe for 27,639,000 ordinary
shares of the Company on 28 September 2005 (“2005 Market Price Options”). The Company also granted Market Price
Option to subscribe for 10,700,000 ordinary shares of the Company on 9 June 2006 (“2006 Market Price Options”).
Particulars of the 2005 and 2006 Market Price Options were set out in the Directors’ Report for the financial years ended
31 December 2005 and 31 December 2006 respectively.

On 23 August 2007, the Company granted Market Price Option to subscribe for 10,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at an exercise price of $S$0.51 per share (“2007 Market Price Options”). The 2007 Market Price Options are exercisable one
year after the grant date and expiring on the fifth or tenth anniversary of the grant date. The total fair value of the 2007 Market
Price Options granted was estimated to be RMB12,439,000 using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

Details of the Market Price Option granted to directors of the Company were as follows:
No. of unissued ordinary shares of the Company under options

Granted in Aggregate granted since Aggregate exercised since Aggregate
financial year ended = commencement of scheme commencement of scheme outstanding as at
31 December 2007 to 31 December 2007 to 31 December 2007 31 December 2007
Name of director
Chong Wing Hong 300,000 840,000 - 840,000
Dang Zhen Tai 1,000,000 2,320,000 - 2,320,000
Lai Seng Kwoon 200,000 900,000 = 900,000
Loo Choon Chiaw 500,000 500,000 = 500,000
Teo Moh Gin 200,000 700,000 - 700,000

No option has been granted to controlling shareholders of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited).
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

Share options (continued)
(@ China Sun Employee Share Option Scheme (continued)
No participant under the Scheme has received 5% or more of the total number of shares under option available under the

Scheme since commencement, except as follows:
No. of unissued ordinary shares of the Company under options

Granted in Aggregate granted since Aggregate exercised since Aggregate
financial year ended = commencement of scheme commencement of scheme outstanding as at
31 December 2007 to 31 December 2007 to 31 December 2007 31 December 2007
Name of participant
Employee of the Group
Poon Tsz Kin 1,500,000 3,100,000 (800,000) 2,300,000
Li Bing Shan 1,500,000 3,100,000 (1,400,000) 1,700,000

No option was granted at a discount during the financial year.

(o) During the financial year, 3,010,000 (2006: 1,000,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each of the Company were allotted
and issued at the exercise price of S$0.39, upon the exercise of the 2005 Market Price Options.

(c) Share options outstanding
The number of unissued ordinary shares of the Company under option in relation to the China Sun Employee Share

Option Scheme outstanding at end of the financial year was as follows:
Number of unissued ordinary shares

under option at 31 December 2007 Exercise price Exercise period
Options relating to China Sun
Employee Share Option Scheme:
2005 Market Price Options 21,869,000 S$$0.39 28.9.2006 - 27.9.2015
2005 Market Price Options 1,760,000 S$$0.39 28.9.2006 - 27.9.2010
2006 Market Price Options 9,400,000 S$0.64 9.6.2007 - 8.6.2016
2006 Market Price Options 1,100,000 S$0.64 9.6.2007 - 8.6.2011
2007 Market Price Options 8,800,000 S$0.51 23.8.2008 - 22.8.2017
2007 Market Price Options 1,200,000 S$0.51 23.8.2008 - 22.8.2012

44,129,000

(d) Except as disclosed above, there were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries under option granted by
the Company or its subsidiaries as at the end of the financial year.

Independent auditor
The independent auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment.

On behalf of the directors

SUN GUIJI (Director) SUN KAI (Director)

31 March 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

CHINA SUN BIOo-CHEM TECHNOLOGY GRourP COMPANY LTD.
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of China Sun Bio-chem Technology Group Company Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 69, which comprise the balance sheets of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:

(@) devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting control sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that
they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profit and loss account of the Group
and balance sheets of the Company and of the Group, and to maintain accountability of assets;

(b) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
(c) make accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group are properly drawn
up in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to present fairly, in all material aspects, the state of affairs

of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2007, and of the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group
for the financial year ended on that date.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore, 31 March 2008
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CONSOLIDATED

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

INCOME STATEMENT
DECEMBER 2007/

ENDED 3|

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other gains — net

Expenses

- Distribution and marketing
- Administrative

- Finance

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Total profit

Earnings per share attributable to the
equity holders of the Company

- Basic (RMB cent)

- Diluted (RMB cent)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

10

10

2007
RMB’000

1,672,068
(1,189,315)
482,753
81,359
(38,160)
(74,095)
(91,069)
360,788
(89,842)

270,946

33.49

28.07

2006
RMB’000

1,377,550
(923,517)
454,033
24,970
(28,013)
(59,890)
(24,736)
366,364
(85,198)

281,166

35.80

29.87
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BALANCE SHEETS

As AT 3| DECEMBER 2007

The Group The Company
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11 693,367 1,188,265 79,220 468,163
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 12 233,213 5,000 233,213 -
Trade and other receivables 13 362,487 324,889 220,000 155,000
Inventories 14 187,893 141,986 - -
Other current assets 15 140,816 65,593 638 628
1,617,776 1,725,733 533,071 623,791
Non-current assets
Loan to a subsidiary 16 - - 703,243 589,480
Investments in subsidiaries, at cost 17 - - 168,876 168,876
Property, plant and equipment 18 953,714 592,240 = =
953,714 592,240 872,119 758,356
Total assets 2,571,490 2,317,973 1,405,190 1,382,147
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 198,767 208,364 13,464 10,823
Current income tax liabilities 9 24,254 22,448 - -
Borrowings 20 130,000 124,000 - -
353,021 354,812 13,464 10,823
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 21 133,747 176,944 133,747 176,944
Borrowings 20 599,808 556,520 599,808 556,520
733,555 733,464 733,555 733,464
Total liabilities 1,086,576 1,088,276 747,019 744,287
NET ASSETS 1,484,914 1,229,697 658,171 637,860
EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital 22 215,001 214,272 215,001 214,272
Share premium 22 346,158 340,534 346,158 340,534
Other reserves 23 154,807 130,930 15,380 8,658
Retained earnings 768,948 543,961 81,632 74,396
TOTAL EQUITY 1,484,914 1,229,697 658,171 637,860

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
DECEMBER 2007

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3|

Share

Note capital

RMB’000

2007
Balance at 1 January 2007

Total recognised gains
- Net profit for the financial year

Transfer from retained earnings
to statutory reserves

Issue of shares through exercise
of employee share option scheme

Employee share option scheme
- value of the employee services

Dividends paid

214,272

22 & 23 729

25 =

Balance at 31 December 2007

215,001

2006
Balance at 1 January 2006

Total recognised gains
- Net profit for the financial year

Transfer from retained earnings
to statutory reserves

Issue of shares
- conversion of the convertible bonds

- exercise of employee share
option scheme

Share issue expenses
- conversion of the convertible bonds

Employee share option scheme
- value of the employee services

Interim dividends paid

204,691

23 =
22 & 23 9,327

22 & 23 254

23 =

Balance at 31 December 2006

214,272

Share
premium
RMB’000

340,534

5,624

346,158

206,918

183,712

1,923

(2,019)

340,534

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Other
reserves
RMB’000

130,930

17,155

(467)

7,189

154,807

99,807

28,622

(5,002)

212)

7,715

130,930

Retained
earnings
RMB’000

543,961

270,946

(17,155)

(28,804)

768,948

330,619

281,166

(28,622)

(39,202)

543,961

IN EQUITY

Total
equity
RMB’000

1,229,697

270,946

5,886

7,189
(28,804)

1,484,914

842,035

281,166

138,037

1,965

(2,019)

7,715
(39,202)

1,229,697
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

Note 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Total profit 270,946 281,166
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense 89,842 85,198
Amortised cost of debt component of convertible bonds 83,050 20,005
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (43,197) (3,857)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 39,738 25,887
Dividend income from money market fund (6,960) (1,230)
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 219 21)
Interest expense 8,019 4,731
Interest income (20,469) (12,141)
Share option expenses 7,189 7,715
Unrealised exchange gains (39,760) (2,172)
388,617 405,281
Change in working capital:
Inventories (45,907) (102,458)
Trade and other receivables (37,598) (1561,741)
Other current assets (75,223) (60,103)
Trade and other payables (50,253) 72,985
Decrease/(Increase) in restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,000 (5,000)
Cash generated from operations 184,636 158,964
Income tax paid (88,036) (71,411)
Net cash provided by operating activities 96,600 87,553
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired 17(@)  (260,300) -
Dividend received from money market fund 6,960 1,230
Interest income 20,469 12,141
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 31 99
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (100,508) (120,875)
Net cash used in investing activities (333,348) (107,405)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (28,804) (89,202)
(Increase)/Decrease in restricted cash and cash equivalents (233,213) 96,958
Interest paid (8,019) (4,731)
Net proceeds from the issue of convertible bonds - 765,569
Net proceeds from the issue of new shares 5,886 1,965
Proceeds from bank loans 190,000 85,000
Repayments of bank loans (184,000) (26,800)
Share issue expenses arising from conversion of convertible bonds - (2,019)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (258,150) 876,740
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (494,898) 856,888
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 11 1,188,265 331,377
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 11 693,367 1,188,265

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.
1. General information

China Sun Bio-chem Technology Group Company Ltd. (the “Company”) is incorporated and domiciled in the Cayman Islands
and is publicly traded on the main board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “Singapore Exchange”).
The principal place of business is at 32nd floor, The Spaces International Centre, No. 8 Dongdagiao Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The principal activity of the Company is that of investment holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are described
in Note 17.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting
policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2007

On 1 January 2007, the Group adopted the new or revised FRS and Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) that are mandatory
for application from that date. Changes to the Group’s accounting policies have been made as required, in accordance
with the transitional provisions in the respective FRS and INT FRS.

The following are the new and amended FRS that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures
FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The adoption of the above new and amended FRS did not result in any substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies or any significant impact on these financial statements.

FRS 107 and the complementary amended FRS 1 introduce new disclosures relating to financial instruments and capital
respectively. Please refer to Note 27 for the new disclosures arising from the adoption of these new and amended FRS.

2.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of value-added tax,
rebates and discounts, and after eliminating sales within the Group. The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue and related cost can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when a Group entity has delivered the products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and the collectibility of the related receivable is reasonably assured.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

(i) - Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Government grants

Government grant is recognised initially in the consolidated balance sheet as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that it will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to it. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in the income statement on a systematic
basis in the same period in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for capitalised
finance costs are set off against the capitalised amount. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised in the income statement as income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

2.3 Group accounting

2.4

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally
accompanied by a shareholding giving rise to the majority of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

(i) Acquisitions of subsidiaries

(i)

Acquisitions of subsidiaries from related parties are accounted for as reconstructions of businesses under common
control using the historical cost method similar to the “pooling of interest” method.

Under the historical cost method, the acquired assets and liabilities are recorded at their existing carrying amounts.
The consolidated financial statements include the results of operations, and the assets and liabilities, of the combined
entities as part of the Group for the whole of the current and preceding periods.

Any excess or deficiency of the nominal value of the shares issued in exchange for the nominal value of shares
acquired is taken to shareholders’ equity as a merger reserve/deficit.

All other acquisitions with unrelated parties are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued or liabilities incurred or assumed at the dates
of exchange, plus cost directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date on which control ceases.

Eliminations on consolidation

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group entities are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but are considered an impairment
indicator of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Please refer to Note 2.4 for the accounting policy on investments in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements of
the Company.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company’s balance sheet.
On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the
investments is recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

2.6

()

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Measurement
All property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment recognised initially includes its purchase price and any cost that
is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management including borrowing costs incurred for plant under construction. The projected
cost of dismantlement, removal or restoration is also included as part of the cost of property, plant and equipment if the
obligation for the dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their depreciable
amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Useful lives
Land use rights over the terms of leases of 50 years
Buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 5 years

No depreciation is provided for assets under construction until the construction is completed and the assets are
transferred to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment and are available for use.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment are reviewed,
and adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The effects of any revision are recognised in the income
statement for the financial year in which the changes arise.

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognised is added to the
carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Other subsequent expenditure is recognised as repair
and maintenance expense in the income statement during the financial year in which it is incurred.

Disposal
On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal proceeds and its
carrying amount is recognised in the income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and investments in subsidiaries are tested for impairment whenever there is any objective
evidence indication that these assets may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing of these assets, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating-units (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount
is recognised as an impairment loss in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

2.6

2.7

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of an asset is increased
to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets

()

(i)

(i)

Classification

The Group has only one category of financial assets, which is loans and receivables. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are presented as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are presented as “trade and
other receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” on the balance sheet.

Measurement
Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
and recognises an allowance for impairment when such evidence exists.

An allowance for impairment of loans and receivables, including trade and other receivables, is recognised when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, and default
or significant delay in payments are objective evidence that these financial assets are impaired. The carrying amount
of these assets is reduced through the use of an impairment allowance account which is calculated as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

When an asset becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are recognised against the same line item in the income statement.

The allowance for impairment loss account is reduced through the income statement in a subsequent period when the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the related decrease can be objectively measured. The carrying amount of
the asset previously impaired is increased to the extent that the new carrying amount does not exceed the amortised
cost had no impairment been recognised in prior periods.

2.8 Borrowings and borrowing cost

Borrowings are presented as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.

()

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently carried at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Borrowings and borrowing cost (continued)

(i)  Convertible bonds
On issuance of foreign currency convertible bonds, the proceeds are allocated between the liability component and the
embedded derivatives. At inception, the embedded derivatives are recognised at fair value, while the difference between the
total proceeds and the fair value of the embedded derivatives is recognised as the convertible bond liability.

The embedded derivatives are subsequently carried at fair value with fair value changes recognised in the income
statement, while the liability component is carried at amortised cost until the liability is extinguished on conversion
or redemption.

When an option is exercised, the carrying amounts of the liability component and the embedded derivatives are
derecognised with a corresponding recognition of the share capital and share premium. When the option is allowed to
lapse, the carrying amount of the embedded derivatives will be taken to retained earnings.

(iii) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred to finance the development of buildings are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised on a time-
proportion basis in the income statement using the effective interest method.

The cost capitalised is the actual borrowing costs incurred during the period less any investment income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings.

2.9 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

241

—

A derivative financial instrument is initially recognised at its fair value on the date the contract is entered into and is
subsequently carried at its fair value.

Fair value changes for derivative financial instrument are included in the income statement within other gains — net in the
financial year when the changes arise.

Fair value estimation

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as exchange-traded and over-the-counter securities
and derivatives) are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market prices used for financial
assets held by the Group are the current bid prices; the appropriate quoted market prices for financial liabilities are the
current ask prices.

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. Where appropriate, quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used. Valuation
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair values of the financial instruments.

The fair values of current financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate to their
carrying amounts.

212 Operating leases

Leases of assets where substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

212 Operating leases (continued)

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor
by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. The
cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal production capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.14 Income taxes

Current income tax for current and prior periods are recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from
the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

A deferred income tax liability is recognised on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is measured:
(i) at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

balance sheet date; and

(i) based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the balance sheet
date, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expense in the income statement, except to the extent
that the tax arises from a business combination or a transaction which is recognised directly in equity.

215 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Provisions for asset dismantlement, removal or restoration and legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.

The Group recognises the estimated costs of dismantlement, removal or restoration of items of property, plant and
equipment arising from the acquisition or use of assets. This provision is estimated based on the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into consideration time value.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised in the income statement as finance expense.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

215 Provisions for other liabilities and charges (continued)

Changes in the estimated timing or amount of the expenditure or discount rate are recognised in the income statement
when the changes arise except for asset dismantlement, removal and restoration costs, which are adjusted against the
cost of the related property, plant and equipment unless the decrease in the liability exceeds the carrying amount of the
asset or the asset has reached the end of its useful life. In such cases, the excess of the decrease over the carrying amount
of the asset or the changes in the liability is recognised in income statement immediately.

2.16 Employee compensation

()

(i)

Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
separate entities such as Social Insurance Funds, and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if any of the funds does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee
services in the current and preceding financial years. The Group’s contribution to defined contribution plans are
recognised as employee compensation expense in the financial year to which they relate.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense in the income statement with a
corresponding increase in the share option reserve over the vesting period. The total amount to be recognised over
the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted on the date of grant. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in the estimation of the number of shares under options that are expected to become
exercisable on the vesting date. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares
under options that are expected to become exercisable on the vesting date and recognises the impact of the revision
of the estimates in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve over the
remaining vesting period.

When the options are exercised, the proceeds received (net of any directly attributable transaction costs) and the
related balance previously recognised in the share option reserve is credited to share capital and share premium
accounts when new ordinary shares are issued.

217 Currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“‘RMB”), which is the Company’s and its principal subsidiaries’ functional and presentation currency. The
Company adopted RMB as its functional currency as the underlying investments are in the PRC.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Currency translation differences from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the closing rates at the balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement, except for currency
translation differences on the net investment in foreign operations. These currency translation differences are recognised
in the currency translation reserve within equity in the consolidated financial statements and transferred to the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair values are determined.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
217 Currency translation (continued)

(iii) - Translation of Group entities’ financial statements

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the date of the balance sheet;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless the average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income

and expenses are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions); and
(c) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation reserve within equity.

(iv) Consolidation adjustments

On consolidation, currency translation differences arising from the net investment in foreign operations are taken to the
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such currency translation differences recorded in the

currency translation reserve are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.18 Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Group engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment
is a distinguishable component of the Group engaged in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those segments operating in other

economic environments.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits with financial institutions and short-term investments. Short-
term investments are classified as cash equivalents when these investments are highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of

presentation in the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of restricted cash.
2.20 Dividends to Company’s shareholders

Dividends to Company’s shareholders are recognised when the dividends are approved for payments.
3. Comparative figures

The following comparative figures have been re-classified to confirm to current year’s presentation.

Reclassification of investments in institutional money market fund

The Group and the Company had previously presented the investment in institutional money market fund as “financial

assets, at fair value through profit or loss”.

Following the press release issued by the Institutional Money Market Fund Association on 2 May 2007 which highlighted the
key features of institutional money market funds that can be regarded as cash equivalents in accordance with International
Accounting Standard 7 — Cash Flow Statements (equivalent to FRS 7 — Cash Flow Statements), management had considered
the key features of the investment in institutional money market fund and concluded that it is more appropriate to reclassify

this investment as “cash and cash equivalents”.
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3. Comparative figures (continued)
Reclassification of investments in institutional money market fund (continued)

Accordingly, certain comparative figures have been restated to reflect this reclassification and the effects on the financial
statements are summarised as follows:

RMB’000
Balance sheets of the Group and the Company as at 31 December 2006:
- Financial assets, at fair value through profit or loss (157,576)
- Cash and cash equivalents 157,576
Cash flow statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006:
- Net cash used in investing activities (157,576)
- Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 157,576

4. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates, assumptions and judgements made that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Valuation of derivative financial instruments

The Group and the Company carry derivative financial instruments at fair value. The derivative financial instruments arise
from the derivatives (namely the conversion option, call option and put option) embedded in the convertible bonds issued
in 2006 (Note 21).

Fair value of the embedded derivatives at inception date and at balance sheet date were assessed by an independent
valuer on a market basis using the binomial model (the “Model”). In arriving at the fair value of the embedded derivatives,
extensive accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements were used.

The Model uses observable data, to the extent practicable. However, areas such as volatility of share price of the Company,
dividend yield and annual risk free interest rate require management to make estimates and judgement to a certain extent.
The amount of embedded derivatives and the convertible bonds liability at initial recognition and subsequent measurement
would differ if the independent valuer uses a different valuation model and parameter value. Should there be a change in
the methodology and parameter value used, the fair value of these embedded derivatives and the corresponding amount of
the convertible bond, and the related amortisation and exchange gains/losses of the convertible bonds would be changed
accordingly, and hence, will have an impact to the Group’s and the Company’s profitability.

Please refer to Note 27 for the sensitivity analysis on the changes in the key parameters used that will have an impact to
the Group’s and the Company’s profitability.
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5. Revenue and other gains (net)

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
Sales
Sales of goods 1,672,068 1,377,550

Other gains/(losses) - net
Change in fair value of embedded derivative financial instruments in

- 2005 Convertible Bonds = (39,316)
- 2006 Convertible Bonds () (Note 21) 43,197 43173
43,197 3,857
Dividend income from money market fund 6,960 1,230
Foreign exchange gain (net) 6,063 7,402
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (219) 21
Government grant 4,000 -
Interest income 20,469 12,141
Others 889 319
81,359 24,970

1,753,427 1,402,520

(i) “2005 Convertible Bonds” refer to the S$20 million 1% convertible bonds issued in 2005. The 2005 convertible bonds were fully converted in 2006.
(i) “2006 Convertible Bonds” refer to the US$100 million zero coupon convertible bonds issued in 2006 (See Note 21 for more details).

6. Profit before income tax

The following items have been included in arriving at profit before income tax:

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
Charging:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 18) 39,738 25,887
Employee compensation (Note 7) 49,435 41,568
Transportation expenses 33,391 24,900
Rental on operating lease 3,236 3,538
Travelling expenses 3,098 3,304
Included in the cost of sales are the following items:
The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 31,068 20,043
Employee compensation 12,055 9,110
7. Employee compensation
The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wages and salaries 39,965 31,827
Employer’s contribution to defined contribution plans 2,281 2,026
Share option expense (Note 23) 7,189 7,715
49,435 41,568

Key management’s remuneration is disclosed under related party transactions in (Note 28).
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8. Finance expense

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

Finance expense:

- interest on bank loans 9,764 7,354
- interest on 2005 Convertible Bonds - 491
- amortisation cost of convertible bonds 83,050 20,005
92,814 27,850
Less: Amount capitalised in construction-in-progress (1,745) (3,114)
Finance expense recognised in the income statement 91,069 24,736

9. Income tax expense

(@) Income tax expense

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

Tax expense attributable to profit is made up of:
Current income tax 89,842 85,198

The Group does not have any assessable income in the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands.

Some subsidiaries of the Group enjoy tax concession in the PRC made available to foreign investment production
enterprises. Pursuant to the Income Tax Law of the PRC, these subsidiaries are exempted from taxation for the first two
profitable years and a 50% relief from the normal PRC income tax rates applicable to the subsidiaries for the next three
profitable years thereafter.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2007, the subsidiaries are still enjoying their tax exemptions or concession years
and the details are set out below:

(i) Suzhou Gao Feng Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd.’s (“Suzhou Gao Feng”) applicable enterprise income tax (“EIT”) rate is
24%. Suzhou Gao Feng is exempted from the 3% local income tax.

(i) Shenyang Wanshunda Group Co., Ltd.’s (“Shenyang Wanshunda”) applicable EIT rate is 24% and the local income
tax rate is 3%.

(i) Tongliao Wanshunda Starch Co., Ltd. (“Tongliao Wanshunda”) enjoys its third year of concessionary EIT rate of 15%.
Tongliao Wanshunda is exempted from the 3% local income tax.

(iv) Tongliao Gao Feng Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. (“Tongliao Gao Feng”) enjoys its second year of concessionary EIT rate
of 15%. Tongliao Gao Feng is exempted from the 3% local income tax.

(v) Foshan Shunde Gao Feng Starch Chemicals Co., Ltd.’s (“Shunde Gao Feng”) applicable EIT rate is 24%. Shunde
Gao Feng is exempted from the 3% local income tax.

The Group’s operations arise mainly from the PRC. The tax expense on profit differs from the amount that would arise
using the PRC standard rate of income as explained below:

The Group

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

Profit before income tax 360,788 366,364

Tax calculated at 33% (2006: 33%) 119,060 120,900
Effect of differences in tax rates of different subsidiaries (11,084) (14,667)
Effect of tax exemption (12,262) (10,445)
Effect of concessionary tax rate (21,174) (15,801)

Deferred tax assets not recognised 15,302 5,211

Tax charge 89,842 85,198
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Income tax expense (continued)

Income tax expense (continued)

The Group has unutilised tax losses of RMB74,550,000 (2006: RMB17,523,000) available for offsetting against future
taxable income subject to the relevant provisions of the income tax rules and agreement by the local tax authorities.
The related tax benefits on the unutilised tax losses have not been recognised in the financial statements as, in the
opinion of management, their realisation cannot be reasonably ascertained or the tax rate that are expected to apply is
zero when the related tax benefits are realised.

Movement in current income tax liabilities

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
At the beginning of the financial year 22,448 8,661
Income tax paid (88,036) (71,411)
Tax expense on profit 89,842 85,198
At the end of the financial year 24,254 22,448
New tax law

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved the New Corporate Income Tax Law (FRfE A\ REF1E 4
Fr{8#i;%) and on 6 December 2007, the State Council approved the Detailed Implementation Regulations (£ )l FriG &%
527t £515) [hereinafter “the new CIT Law”]. The following sets out the key changes in the new CIT Law that would have an
impact on the Group from 1 January 2008:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign investment enterprises income tax rate

Effective from 1 January 2008, all the PRC subsidiaries shall determine and pay the corporate income tax in
accordance with the new CIT Law. For the subsidiaries which were subject to rates of 24% or 33% under the
foreign investment enterprises income tax old regime, the new applicable CIT rate will be 25% starting from
1 January 2008.

Two-year exemption and three-year half rate tax incentive scheme

Under the old CIT Law, a foreign investment production enterprise will be entitled to a two year exemption from
income taxes followed by three years of a 50% tax reduction from the normal PRC income tax rates applicable to
the enterprise, commencing from the first cumulative profit-making year net of losses carried forward (the “two-year
exemption and three-year half rate tax incentive scheme”) as approved by the tax authorities. With the adoption of the
new CIT Law, such tax preferential policy will not be granted any more.

The new CIT Law also addresses the transitional preferential enterprise income tax policies for enterprises established
prior to the issuance of the new CIT Law. For those subsidiaries which have already commenced their tax holiday
before 2008, they could continue to enjoy the remaining unutilised tax holidays until expiry; for those subsidiaries
which have not commenced their tax holiday before 2008 due to losses, their tax holiday would be deemed to
commence in 2008 and could be utilised until expiry.

As at 31 December 2007, certain subsidiaries of the Group were granted the status of two-year exemption and three-
year half rate tax incentive scheme. Please refer to Note 9(a) for the details of these subsidiaries.

Withholding tax on dividends
Under the new CIT Law, dividends distributed to the foreign investor by Foreign Invested Enterprises (“FIE”) will no
longer be tax exempted. Such dividends will be subject to a 10% withholding tax starting from 1 January 2008.

On 22 February 2008, the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation jointly issued a circular clarifying
that in a situation where the FIE declares a dividend in 2008 and beyond out of the accumulative retained earnings as
of 31 December 2007, such dividends earned by the foreign investor shall be exempted from corporate withholding
income tax (“WHT”). For dividend arising out of profits earned after 1 January 2008, WHT at 10% will be levied on the
foreign investor.
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10. Earnings per share
(@) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year.

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 270,946 281,166

Shares’000 Shares’000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for basic earnings per share 809,113 785,465

Basic earnings per share 33.49cent 35.80 cent

(b) Diluted earnings per share

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The calculation of diluted earnings per share does not assume conversion, exercise, or other issue of potential
ordinary shares that would have an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share.

The Company has two categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: the convertible bonds and share options. However,
its 2005 Convertible Bonds has an anti-dilutive effect on its 2006 earnings per share as its interest expense, fair value
changes and foreign exchange differences per ordinary share obtainable on conversion exceed basic earnings per share.
In addition, its 2006 Market Price Options has an anti-dilutive effect on its 2007 earnings per share as its exercise price is
higher than the fair value (determined as the Company’s average share price for the financial year).

The 2006 Convertible Bonds are assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares at issuance and the net profit is
adjusted to eliminate the interest expense, fair value changes and foreign exchange differences (tax not applicable).

For the share options, the weighted average number of shares in issue has been adjusted as if all share options that
are dilutive were exercised. The number of shares that could have been issued upon the exercise of all dilutive share
options less the number of shares that could have been issued at fair value for the same total proceeds is added to the
denominator as the number of shares issued for no consideration. No adjustment is made to the net profit.

Diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Company is calculated as follows:

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 270,946 281,166
Interest expense, net of fair value change and foreign
exchange differences on the 2006 Convertible Bonds 93 (82,105)
Net profit used to determine diluted earnings per share 271,039 249,061

Shares’000 Shares’000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding for basic earnings per share 809,113 785,465
Adjustments for:
- 2006 Convertible Bonds 146,357 35,624
- share options 10,077 12,787

965,547 833,876

Diluted earnings per share 28.07 cent  29.87 cent

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - PAGE 51

China Sun Bio-chem Technology Group Company Ltd.
Annual Report 2007



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3|

11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term bank deposits
Money market fund

Cash and cash equivalents per
consolidated cash flow statement

12. Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposits
Bank acceptance notes

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
614,162 716,627
28,816 314,062
50,389 157,576
693,367 1,188,265
The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
233,213 -
- 5,000
233,213 5,000

DECEMBER 2007

The Company
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

15 434
28,816 310,153
50,389 157,576
79,220 468,163

The Company
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
233,213 -
233,213 -

The restricted deposits as at 31 December 2007 relate to the deposits pledged as security for banking facilities extended

to one of the subsidiaries (Note 20).

The restricted deposits as at 31 December 2006 relate to the deposits required by a bank for the purpose of issuing bank

acceptance notes for one of the subsidiaries.

13. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables

- non-related parties

Value-added tax recoverable
Dividend receivable from a subsidiary
Other receivables

14. Inventories

Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Raw materials

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
318,021 314,620
20,124 10,269
24,342 -
362,487 324,889
The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
45,246 20,155
1,005 -
141,642 121,831
187,893 141,986

The Company

2007

2006

RMB’000 RMB’000

220,000

155,000

220,000 155,000
The Company
2007 2006

RMB’000 RMB’000

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to RMB1,187,878,000

(2006: RMB923,517,000).
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15.

16.

17.

Other current assets

The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Deposits 128,357 60,413 638 592
Prepayments 12,459 3,952 - 36
Deferred expenses - 824 - -
Others - 404 - -
140,816 65,593 638 628

Included in the deposits of the Group is deposits for the purchase of raw materials amounting to RMB127,516,000
(2006: RMB56,608,000)

Loan to a subsidiary

The loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and its settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future. In substance, the loan amount formed part of the Company’s net investment in the subsidiary.

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company had the following subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007:

Country of Effective percentage of

Name of companies Principal activities incorporation/registration  equity held by the Group

2007 2006

% %
Held by the Company
Sky Bright Group Limited (1) Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100 100
FAERAFR AR
China Sun Bio-chem Investors relationship Singapore 100 100
Technology (Singapore) Co Pte Ltd. 20 management, market
research and
administrative services

Held by Sky Bright Group Limited
Suzhou Gao Feng Fine Production and sale People’s Republic of China 100 100
Chemicals Co., Ltd ©® of modified starch
NS EBRHLTERAR
Shenyang Wanshunda Group Co., Ltd ©  Production and sale of corn  People’s Republic of China 100 100
TEBRFIRE EF B R 2 7 starch and modified starch
Tongliao Wanshunda Starch Co., Ltd ©  Production and sale People’s Republic of China 100 100
BT AIGE RS BRA T of corn starch
Foshan Shunde Gao Feng Starch Production and sale People’s Republic of China 100 100
Chemicals Co., Ltd © of modified starch
HlmInE R SEER L FERA R
Tongliao Gao Feng Fine Chemicals Production and sale People’s Republic of China 100 100
Co., Ltd ©® of corn starch and
B SEEALTIERAR modified starch
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17. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Country of Effective percentage of
Name of companies Principal activities incorporation/registration equity held by the Group
2007 2006
% %
Held by Sky Bright Group Limited (continued)
Sky Bright (Shenyang) Ethanol Co., Ltd © Production and sale People’s Republic of China 100 100
XA (7EPH) BREARAE of ethanol
Tieling Wanshunda Starch Co., Ltd @ Production and sale of corn  People’s Republic of China 100 -
RIS ANHE M BIR AT starch and corn sweetener
Suzhou Gao Feng Sweetener Production and sale of People’s Republic of China 100 -
Industry Co., Ltd ©): ®) corn sweetener
FINFIERE L FRA R
China Sun (Beijing) Bio-chem. Co., Ltd © Research and development People’s Republic of China 100 100
B2 (d7) ELXFRAF of biochemical technologies

(1) Not required to be audited under the laws of the country of incorporation.

(2) Audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers Singapore.

(3) Audited by 7tPAZRIE &itIME &AM =E/ T (Shenyang Rongzheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd), a member of The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants for local statutory purpose.

(@ Acquisition of Tieling Wanshunda Starch Co., Ltd (“Tieling WSD”)

In April 2007, Sky Bright Group Limited (“Sky Bright”) entered into an agreement with an external party to acquire the
entire share capital of Tieling WSD, an entity incorporated in the People’s Republic of China, Liaoning Province, at a total
consideration of RMB288,422,000. The ownership of Tieling WSD was legally transferred to Sky Bright in October 2007.

Management evaluated the business combination criteria within FRS 103 — Business Combinations, and concluded that the
acquisition of Tieling WSD represented a purchase of assets rather than a business combination. Accordingly, the tangible
and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their relative fair values at the date of acquisition
based on total consideration and no goodwill was recorded.

The purchase consideration is allocated as follows:

RMB’000
Land (Note 18) 40,493
Building (Note 18) 61,395
Machineries (Note 18) 184,637
Other non-current assets 332
Current assets 1,565
Total consideration 288,422
Less: Amount payable to the seller of Tieling WSD (28,122)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 260,300

As at 31 December 2007, RMB28,122,000 is payable to the seller in relation to the above acquisition which would be paid
upon completion of the upgrading and testing period of the machineries acquired (Note 19).

(b) Incorporation of Suzhou Gao Feng Sweetener Industry Co., Ltd (“Suzhou Sweetener”)

During the financial year, Sky Bright incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary, Suzhou Sweetener, with a registered capital of
US$20million (equivalent to RMB146,092,000). Its initial paid-up capital amounted to US$6 million (equivalent to RMB45,710,000).
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18. Property, plant and equipment

DECEMBER 2007

Land use Machinery & Motor Office equipment, Construction-
rights Buildings equipment vehicles furniture & fittings  in-progress Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

The Group
2007
Cost
At 1 January 2007 43,917 78,573 230,026 9,221 3,080 339,958 704,725
Additions 9,558 1,411 2,741 1,674 1,195 98,458 114,937
Acquisition of subsidiary

(Note 17) 40,493 61,395 184,637 - - - 286,525
Transfer from construction-

in-progress (“CIP”) - 128,292 222,815 - 8 (851,120) -
Disposals - - (686) (93) - - (779)
At 31 December 2007 93,968 269,671 639,533 10,702 4,238 87,296 1,105,408
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007 6,707 20,659 80,729 3,437 953 - 112,485
Depreciation charge 1,118 6,664 29,979 1,300 677 = 39,738
Disposals - - (445) (84) - - (529)
At 31 December 2007 7,825 27,323 110,263 4,653 1,630 - 151,694
Carrying value
At 31 December 2007 86,143 242,348 529,270 6,049 2,608 87,296 953,714
The Group
2006
Cost
At 1 January 2006 43,917 71,893 215,397 7,667 1,926 120,948 461,648
Additions - - 1,174 2,104 1,099 239,162 243,539
Transfer from construction-

in-progress - 6,680 18,455 - 17 (20,152) -
Disposals - - - (450) (12) - (462)
At 31 December 2006 43,917 78,573 230,026 9,221 3,080 339,958 704,725
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 5,570 17,299 60,854 2,559 700 - 86,982
Depreciation charge 1,137 3,360 19,875 1,252 263 - 25,887
Disposals - - - (874) (10) - (384)
At 31 December 2006 6,707 20,659 80,729 3,437 953 - 112,485
Carrying value
At 31 December 2006 37,210 57,914 149,297 5,784 2,077 339,958 592,240

As at 31 December 2007, one of the Group’s subsidiaries, Shunde Gao Feng Chemicals Co., Ltd (“Shunde Gao Feng”) is
the owner of the buildings on a piece of land pursuant to the House Ownership Certificates issued by the relevant PRC
authority. However, the full rights to the properties (comprising buildings and land) are subject to the grant of the land use
rights for the land on which the buildings are erected. Shunde Gao Feng has applied for the grant of the land use rights
from the relevant PRC authority whose procedures include the determination of the land premium and the payment thereof
by Shunde Gao Feng. As at the date of these financial statements, Shunde Gao Feng has yet to receive the land use rights
from the relevant authority.
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18.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Should Shunde Gao Feng eventually fail to obtain the land use rights from the relevant PRC authority, the subsidiary may
be requested to vacate its buildings and relocate to new premises. In such an event, the carrying value of the building
amounting to RMB3,646,000 (2006: RMB4,047,000) may not be recoverable. The management is of the view that the
land use rights will be obtained and accordingly, no impairment charges against the carrying value of the buildings have
been made in these financial statements.

In addition, on the basis that the machineries in this building can be used in another manufacturing subsidiary, the
management is of the view that these machineries with a carrying value of RMB2,105,000 as at 31 December 2007 (2006:
RMB2,213,000) are not impaired.

(b) Property, plant and equipment with a carrying value amounting to RMB75,683,000 had been pledged as security for
bank borrowings undertaken in the previous financial year (Note 20). The pledge was fully discharged subsequent to the
full repayment of the bank borrowings during the current financial year.

(c) One of the subsidiaries received grant of RMB1,745,000 (2006: RMB4,255,000) from the local finance bureau for the
purpose of subsidising the borrowing costs incurred in the construction of the manufacturing plant. Capitalised interest
of RMB1,745,000 (2006: RMB3,271,000) was set off against the interest subsidy received.

19. Trade and other payables

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade payables
- non-related parties 51,184 96,531 - -
Bill payables - 5,000 - =
Accrued expenses 8,052 7,943 - -
Social insurance fund payable 143 1,761 - -
Amounts due to directors (non-trade) 12,787 10,669 12,787 10,669
Payables for construction of
property, plant and equipment 84,456 71,922 - -
Amount payable to seller of Tieling WSD (Note 17) 28,122 - - -
Other payables 14,023 14,5638 677 154
198,767 208,364 13,464 10,823
The amounts due to directors represented accrued directors’ fee, salaries and performance bonus pursuant to their
service agreements with the Group.
20. Borrowings
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Current
- secured 130,000 110,000 - -
- unsecured 14,000 - =

130,000 124,000 = =

Non-current

- convertible bonds (Note 21) 599,808 556,520 599,808 556,520
Total borrowings 729,808 680,520 599,808 556,520
Security granted

(i) Bank loan of RMB130,000,000 as at 31 December 2007 is secured over certain fixed deposits (Note 12) and
supported by corporate guarantees provided by the Company (Note 29);
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20. Borrowings (continued)

21.

(i) Bank loan of RMB110,000,000 as at 31 December 2006 was secured by a first mortgage over certain of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment (Note 18); and

(i) Bank loan of RMB14,000,000 as at 31 December 2006 was unsecured, but was supported by corporate
guarantees provided by certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Convertible bonds

On 4 October 2006, the Company issued zero coupon convertible bonds at a nominal value of US$100 million due on
4 October 2011 (the “2006 Convertible Bonds”). The 2006 Convertible Bonds will be redeemed on 4 October 2011 at
140.38% of their nominal value or can be converted into shares of the Company (the “conversion option”) at the holder’s
option at a conversion price of S$1.0725 per share at any time on and after 14 November 2006 up to the close of business
on 24 September 2011 if not called for redemption.

On 23 August 2007, the Company announced the adjustment on the conversion price from S$1.0725 per share to S$1.0706
per share. The adjustment was made to account for the dilutive impact on the share price arising from the issuance of the
share options during the current financial year. Consequently, on full conversion, up to 146,357,183 (2006: 146,097,902)
conversion shares (“Conversion Ratio”) are expected to be issued and allotted to the holders of the 2006 Convertible Bonds.

The Company may, on or at any time after 4 October 2009 but not less than ten days prior to 4 October 2011, redeem the
2006 Convertible Bonds (the “call option”) in whole but not in part at their early redemption amount if the closing price of
the share for any 20 Trading Days out of the 30 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date upon which notice
of such redemption given was at least 130% of the applicable early redemption amount divided by the Conversion Ratio.
The Company may also redeem the 2006 Convertible Bonds in whole but not in part at the applicable early redemption
amount if at least 90% in principal amount of the 2006 Convertible Bonds has already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

On 4 October 2009, the bondholders of the 2006 Convertible Bonds have the right at such holder’s option, to require the
Company to redeem (the “put option”) all or part of the 2006 Convertible Bonds at their early redemption amount.

The early redemption amount is equal to 100% of the principal amount plus a premium such that the total amount
represents, to the bondholders, a gross yield of 6.9% per annum calculated on semi-annual basis.

The carrying amount of the liability component of the 2006 Convertible Bonds at the balance sheet date is arrived at
as follows:

The Group & The Company
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

Face value of convertible bonds issued on

4 October 2006, net of transaction costs 765,569 765,569
Embedded derivatives (220,117) (220,117)
Liability component at initial recognition 545,452 545,452
Accumulated amortisation cost
- At 1 January 16,966 -
- Amortisation cost during the financial year 83,050 16,966
At 31 December 100,016 16,966
Accumulated exchange difference (45,660) (5,898)
Liability component at balance sheet date 599,808 556,520

The fair value of the liability component of the 2006 Convertible Bonds at 31 December 2007 is RMB853,786,000 (2006:
RMB813,816,000). The fair value is calculated using cash flows discounted at a borrowing rate of 5.00% (2006: 6.48%).
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21. Convertible bonds (continued)

The conversion, call and put options collectively form a single compound embedded derivative in the 2006 Convertible Bonds.
The change in fair value of the single compound embedded derivative recognised in the other gains — net is as follows:

2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000

Fair value of single compound embedded derivative

- At 1 January/At inception 176,944 220,117
- At 31 December 133,747 176,944
Change in fair value (Note 5) 43,197 43,173

22. Share capital and share premium
(@ Authorised ordinary share capital

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 1,200 million shares (2006: 1,200 million shares) with a par value of
HK$0.25 per share (2006: HK$0.25 per share).

(b) Issued ordinary share capital

2007 2006
Shares’000 RMB’000 Shares’000 RMB’000
At the beginning of the financial year 808,005 214,272 770,641 204,691
Issue of shares on exercise of
employee share options (Note (i) 3,010 729 1,000 254
Conversion of the 2005 Convertible Bonds (Note (iii)) - - 36,364 9,327
At the end of the financial year 811,015 215,001 808,005 214,272

(i) Allissued shares are fully paid.

(i) During the financial year, the Company issued 3,010,000 (2006: 1,000,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each at a
total premium of RMB5,624,000 (2006: RMB1,923,000) for cash upon exercise of options under the China Sun
Employee Share Option Scheme - the 2005 Market Price Options.

(iiiy In the previous financial year, the Company issued 36,363,636 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each at a total premium
of RMB138,712,000 upon the conversion of the 2005 Convertible Bonds.

(iv) The movement in the share premium account are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

All new issued shares as mentioned in the preceding paragraphs rank pari passu, in all respects, with the previous
issued shares.

(c) Share options

Share options are granted to key management and employees under the China Sun Employee Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”) which became operative on 28 September 2005.

The exercise price of the options is determined at the average of the closing prices of the Company’s ordinary shares on
the Singapore Exchange for five market days immediately preceding the date of the grant. The vesting of the options is
conditional on the key management or employee completing another 12 months of service to the Group.

Once the options are vested, they are exercisable for a contractual option term of 4 years or 9 years. The options may be
exercised in full or in part in respect of 1 share or a multiple thereof, on the payment of the exercise price. The persons to
whom the options have been issued have no right to participate by virtue of the options in any share issue of any other
company within the Group. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

On 23 August 2007, options to subscribe for 10,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an exercise price of S$0.51
per ordinary share were granted pursuant to the Scheme (“2007 Market Price Options”). The 2007 Market Price Options
are exercisable one year after the grant date and expire on the fifth or tenth anniversary of the grant date.
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22. Share capital and share premium (continued)
(c) Share options (continued)

Movement in the number of ordinary shares outstanding under options and their exercise prices are as follows:
Number of ordinary shares under options

The Group & Beginning of Granted during  Forfoeited during ~ Exercised during End of Exercise Exercise
the Company financial year financial year financial year financial year financial year price period
2007
2005 Market Price Options 24,879,000 - - (3,010,000) 21,869,000 S$0.39 28.9.2006 -
27.9.2015
2005 Market Price Options 1,760,000 - - - 1,760,000 S$0.39 28.9.2006 -
27.9.2010
2006 Market Price Options 9,400,000 - = - 9,400,000 S$0.64 9.6.2007 -
8.6.2016
2006 Market Price Options 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000 S$0.64 9.6.2007 -
8.6.2011
2007 Market Price Options - 8,800,000 - - 8,800,000 S$0.51 23.8.2008 -
22.8.2017
2007 Market Price Options - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 S$0.51 23.8.2008 -
22.8.2012
37,139,000 10,000,000 - (3,010,000) 44,129,000
2006
2005 Market Price Options 24,879,000 - - - 24,879,000 S$0.39 28.9.2006 -
27.9.2015
2005 Market Price Options 2,760,000 - - (1,000,000) 1,760,000 S$0.39 28.9.2006 -
27.9.2010
2006 Market Price Options - 9,400,000 - - 9,400,000 S$0.64 9.6.2007 -
8.6.2016
2006 Market Price Options - 1,300,000 (200,000) - 1,100,000 S$0.64 9.6.2007 -
8.6.2011

27,639,000 10,700,000 (200,000)  (1,000,000) 37,139,000

Out of the outstanding options for 44,129,000 (2006: 37,139,000) shares as at balance sheet date, options for 34,129,000
(2006: 26,639,000) shares were exercisable. Options exercised in 2007 resulted in 3,010,000 (2006: 1,000,000) shares
being issued at a price of S$0.39 (2006: S$0.39) each.

The fair value of 2007 Market Price Options granted on 23 August 2007, determined using the Binomial Option Pricing
model, is RMB12,439,000. The significant inputs into the model are share price of S$0.60 at the grant date, exercise price
of $$0.51, standard deviation of expected share price returns of 50%, option life as shown above and annual risk-free
interest rates of 2.54% for independent directors and 2.84% for other grantees. The volatility is based on the statistical
analysis of daily share prices one year prior to the issuance of the share options.

23. Other reserves

(@) Composition

The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Share option reserve 15,380 8,658 15,380 8,658
Non-distributable statutory reserves (Note c) 93,278 76,123 - -
Non-distributable merger reserve 42,487 42,487 - -
Non-distributable capital reserves 3,662 3,662 - -
154,807 130,930 15,380 8,658
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23. Other reserves (continued)

()

24.

Movements
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Share option reserve
Beginning of financial year 8,658 1,155 8,658 1,155
Employee share option scheme:
- value of employee services (Note 7 and 22) 7,189 7,715 7,189 7,715
- exercise of share option (467) (212) (467) (212)
End of financial year 15,380 8,658 15,380 8,658
Non-distributable statutory reserves
Beginning of financial year 76,123 47,501 - =
Transfer from retained earnings 17,155 28,622 - -
End of financial year 93,278 76,123 - -
Non-distributable merger reserve
Beginning and end of financial year 42,487 42,487 - -
Non-distributable capital reserves
Beginning and end of financial year 3,662 3,662 - -

Non-distributable statutory reserves

Subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC Subsidiaries”) are required to appropriate certain reserves by transferring from
their profit after taxation in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and, if applicable, Articles of Association of
the PRC Subsidiaries, after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years, and before any dividend is declared and paid.

0

(i)

Reserve fund

In accordance with the regulations for the Implementation of the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Operated Exclusively
with Foreign Capital, there is a legal requirement for the appropriation of not less than 10% of profit after income tax into
the reserve fund for the PRC subsidiaries until the accumulated fund is 50% or more of their respective registered capital,
where further transfers will not be required and subject to directors’ recommendation. Upon the approval from the Board
of Directors, the reserve fund can be used to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.

For the current financial year, the board of directors of the PRC Subsidiaries approved to appropriate 10% of their profit
after taxation to statutory surplus reserve amounting to RMB17,155,000 (2006: RMB28,622,000).

Enterprise expansion fund

Appropriation of enterprise expansion fund is an option for the PRC Subsidiaries. The percentage to be appropriated
is determined by the board of directors of the PRC Subsidiaries. Upon approval from the board of directors, enterprise
expansion fund can be used to expand production or to increase capital.

There is no appropriation of the enterprise expansion fund in 2007 and 2006.

Segment information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. The primary format —
business segments — is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure.

Business segments

The Group’s main business segments comprise the following:

(i) Corn starch products: development, manufacturing and sale of corn starch and its by-products.

(i) Modified starch products: development, manufacturing and sale of modified starch products.

(i) Ethanol products: development, manufacturing and sale of non-fuel ethanol products and its by-products.
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24, Segment information (continued)

(@)

Business segments (continued)

DECEMBER 2007

During the financial year, the Group commenced the commercial production of the non-fuel ethanol products.

Other operations of the Group mainly comprise investment holding, research and development of biochemical technologies
and the new corn sweetener division which has not commenced operation. These operations do not constitute a separable

reportable segment.

As at the balance sheet date, the construction work of the new corn sweetener production facilities is in progress and the
production line is expected to commence its operation in 2008.

Inter-segment transactions are recorded at their transacted price which is generally at fair value. Unallocated costs represent
corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, inventories, receivables and
operating cash and exclude short-term bank deposits and financial investments. Segment liabilities comprise payables and
provisions and exclude income tax liabilities, borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Capital expenditure comprise

additions to property, plant and equipment.

Certain business segment information are as follows:

Corn Starch*

RMB’000

2007

Sales
External sales
Inter-segment sales

1,010,429
52,462

1,062,891
Elimination

Segment results
Profit/(Loss) from segmental operations 223,534

Other gains
Unallocated expenses of
corporate expenses

Profit from operations
Interest income
Interest expense

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Net profit for the financial year

Other segment items
Capital expenditure
Depreciation

316,772
20,538

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets
Unallocated assets

1,474,682

Total assets

Segment liabilities 30,302

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

*: Include the by-products sales of corn starch and ethanol

and ethanol products respectively.

Modified Starch
RMB’000

622,147
182
622,329

218,091

1,769
5,670

264,836

34,843

Ethanol*
RMB’000

421,435

Other operations  Consolidated
RMB’000 RMB’000

39,492 - 1,672,068
- - 52,644
39,492 - 1,724,712
(52,644)
1,672,068

(35,299) (57,084) 349,242

89,919

(90,823)
348,338
20,469
(8,019)
360,788
(89,842)
270,946

8,019 74,902
13,000 630

401,462
39,738

98,219 2,259,072

312,418
2,571,490
76,414 57,208 198,767
887,809

1,086,576

, which are produced in the course of the manufacturing of the corn starch
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24, Segment information (continued)

(@ Business segments (continued)

Corn Starch*
RMB’000

2006

Sales

External sales 711,185
Inter-segment sales 51,385

762,570

Elimination

Modified Starch
RMB’000

666,365
570
666,935

Segment results

Profit/(Loss) from segmental operations 156,747

Other gains
Unallocated expenses of
corporate expenses

Profit from operations
Interest income
Interest expense

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Net profit for the financial year

256,205

Other segment items

Capital expenditure 14,294
Depreciation 17,142

1,668
7,455

Assets and liabilities

Segment assets 848,840

Unallocated assets

Total assets

393,328

Segment liabilities 74,438

Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

40,434

(b) Geographical segments

The Group’s sales are primarily in the PRC with insignificant exports during the current and previous financial year. Hence,
segment information by geographical segments is not presented.

25. Dividends

DECEMBER 2007

Ethanol* Other operations  Consolidated
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

1,377,550
- - 51,955
1,429,505

(51,955)
1,377,550

(10,131) (34,847) 367,974
10,985

(20,005)
358,954
12,141
(4,731)
366,364
(85,198)
281,166

226,674 903 243,539
889 401 25,887

1,841,335
476,638
2,317,973

388,498 210,669

80,949 12,643 208,364
879,912
1,088,276

Final dividend (tax not applicable) of 0.7 Singapore cent per share, amounting to $$5,656,000 (equivalent to
RMB28,804,000), is paid during the current financial year.

Interim dividend (tax not applicable) of 1 Singapore cent per share amounting to S$7,706,000 (equivalent to RMB39,202,000)

was paid during the previous financial year.

At the Annual General Meeting on 23 April 2008, a final dividend (tax not applicable) of 0.7 Singapore cent per share amounting
to S$$5,677,000 will be recommended. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend, which will be accounted for in

shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2008.
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26. Commitments
(@) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Property, plant and equipment 15,693 78,951 - -

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases office premises under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. These leases have varying terms
and renewal rights. The future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at the
balance sheet date but not recognised as liabilities, are analysed as follows:

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Not later than one year 3,111 2,623 - -
Later than one year but not later than five years 3,060 5,174 - -
6,171 7,697 - -

27. Financial risk management

The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial instruments.
The key financial risks include market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for these risks with the management on a regular
basis, for these to be executed by the Chief Financial Officer and the relevant department heads. The Audit Committee
provides independent oversight of the effectiveness of the risk management process. It is the Group’s policy that no
derivatives shall be undertaken except for the use as hedging instruments where appropriate and cost-efficient. The
Group and the Company do not apply hedge accounting.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the above-mentioned
financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

(@) Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group operates primarily in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its sales and purchases are predominantly
transacted in Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign currency risk mainly arises from the cash and cash equivalents (including
restricted cash and cash equivalents) which are denominated in Singapore dollar (“SGD”) and United States dollar
(“USD”) and convertible bonds which are denominated in USD. As at balance sheet date, the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure to currency risk are as follows:

2007 2006
Denominated in Denominated in
SGD uUsbD SGD USD
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
The Group
Cash and cash equivalent, including restricted cash and
cash equivalents 312,433 14,098 44,624 726,190
Convertible bonds, including embedded derivatives - (733,555) - (733,464)
312,433 (719,457) 44,624 (7,274)
The Company
Cash and cash equivalent, including restricted cash and
cash equivalents 312,433 - 44,624 423,539
Convertible bonds, including embedded derivatives - (733,555) - (733,464)

312,433 (733,555) 44,624  (309,925)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2007

27. Financial risk management (continued)

(o)

()

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Trade receivables (continued)
The credit risk for trade receivables based on the information provided to key management is as follows:
The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
By product type
- corn starch 243,150 224,198 - -
- modified starch 70,196 90,422 - -
- ethanol 4,675 - - -
318,021 314,620 - -
Neither past due nor impaired
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy customers with good payment
record with the Group. The Group’s trade receivables which are neither past due nor impaired amounting to
RMB313,119,000 (2006: RMB308,859,000).
Past due but not impaired
Trade receivables that are past due as at balance sheet date but not impaired amounting to RMB4,902,000 (2006:
RMB5,761,000). The average age of these receivables is no longer than 3 months (2006: 3 months). Management
does not expect any losses from non-performance by these customers.
There are no past due and impaired trade receivables as at 31 December 2007 and 2006.
(iii) - Dividend receivable from a subsidiary
The Company’s balance with a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. No impairment
allowance has been made on the receivable as management is of the view that it is recoverable.
(iv) Maximum exposure to credit risk
At the balance sheet date, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by:
- the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the balance sheet of the Group and the
Company; and
- a nominal amount of RMB130 million (2006: nil) relating to corporate guarantees provided by the Company to
banks for facilities granted to subsidiaries of the Group.
The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group or the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to
shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mis-matches of the
maturities of financial assets and liabilities.

The Group adopts prudent liquidity management by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, and having
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The Group maintains sufficient cash balances to provide flexibility in
meeting its day to day funding requirement and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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27. Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Less than 1 year Between 1 & 2 years  Between 2 & 5 years
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
The Group

At 31 December 2007 Trade and other payables 198,767 - =
Bank loans 132,031 - -
Convertible bonds - - 1,025,405
330,798 - 1,025,405
At 31 December 2006 Trade and other payables 206,852 - -
Bank loans 131,204 - =
Convertible bonds - - 1,096,170
338,056 - 1,096,170

The Company
At 31 December 2007 Trade and other payables 13,464 - -
Convertible bonds - - 1,025,405
13,464 - 1,025,405
At 31 December 2006 Trade and other payables 10,823 = =
Convertible bonds - - 1,096,170
10,823 - 1,096,170

(d) Capital risk

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial
years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

In accordance with the regulations for the Implementation of the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Operated Exclusively with
Foreign Capital, there is a legal requirement for the appropriation of not less than 10% of profit after income tax into the reserve
fund for the PRC subsidiaries until the accumulated fund is 50% or more of their respective registered capital, where further
transfers will not be required and subject to directors’ recommendation (Note 23). This externally imposed capital requirement
has been complied with by the PRC subsidiaries for the financial years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006.

The Group monitors capital using a gross gearing ratio, which is total borrowings divided by total equity attributable to
equity holders of the Group. The gearing ratio is reviewed by the Audit Committee on a regular basis. The gross gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2007 is 49% (2006: 55%).
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28. Related party transactions

During the financial year, other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the following transactions took
place between the Group and related parties on terms agreed between the parties:

(@ Key management personnel compensation
The key management’s remuneration includes fees, salary, bonus, commission and other emoluments (including benefits-

in-kind) computed based on the cost incurred by the Group, and where the Group did not incur any costs, the value of
the benefit. The key management personnel compensation is analysed as follows:

The Group
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 16,083 15,561
Share options expense 882 1,989
16,965 17,550

Included in the above is total compensation to directors of the Company amounting to RMB13,318,000 (2006:
RM12,924,000).

Included in the key management personnel compensation is bonus amounting to RMB8,950,000 (2006: RMB8,753,000)
payable to certain directors (the “Directors”) pursuant to the service agreements signed between the Directors and
the Company.

(o) During the financial year, the Group pays fees amounting to RMB865,000 (equivalent to S$171,000) [2006:
RMB695,000 (equivalent to S$137,000)] to firms, of which certain directors are the sole-proprietors, for the
professional services rendered to the Group.

29. Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2007, the Company has issued corporate guarantees for the amount of RMB200 million to a bank for
facilities granted to subsidiaries of the Group.

30. New Accounting Standards and FRS Interpretations

Certain new standards, and amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published and are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008, or later periods, if the Group has not early adopted.
The Group’s assessment of the impact of adopting those standards, amendments and interpretations that are relevant to the
Group is set out below:

(@ INT FRS 111 Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007)

The Group adopted INT FRS 111 on 1 January 2008. INT FRS 111 clarifies that the arrangement where an entity receives
goods or services as consideration for its own equity-instruments shall be accounted for as an equity-settled share-based
payment (“SBP”) transaction, regardless of how the equity instruments needed are obtained. It also provides guidance on
whether group SBP arrangements shall be classified as equity-settled or cash-settled SBP arrangements.

The Group operates an employee share option scheme and issue new shares to settle the obligations arising from the plans.
As the Group has been recognising those share option grants as equity-settled and does not operate any other SBP group
arrangements, INT FRS 111 does not have any impact to the Group.
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30. New Accounting Standards and FRS Interpretations (continued)

(b) FRS 108 Operating Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)
FRS 108 supersedes FRS 14 Segment Reporting and requires the Group to report the financial performance of its operating
segments based on the information used internally by management for evaluating segment performance and deciding on

allocation of resources. Such information may be different from the information included in the financial statements, and the
basis of its preparation and reconciliation to the amounts recognised in the financial statements shall be disclosed.

The Group will apply FRS 108 from 1 January 2009 and provide comparative information that conforms to the requirements
of FRS 108. The expected impact is still being assessed in detail by management.

(c) Revised FRS 23 Borrowing Costs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)
The revised standard removes the option to recognise borrowing costs that are attributable to qualifying assets immediately
as an expense, except for those borrowing costs on qualifying assets that are measured at fair value or inventories that are

manufactured or produced in large quantities on a repetitive basis.

The Group will apply the revised FRS 23 from 1 January 2009. As the Group has been capitalising the relevant borrowing
costs, the revised standard is not expected to have any impact to the Group.

31. Authorisation of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of China Sun
Bio-chem Technology Group Company Ltd. on 31 March 2008.
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SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS

As AT | | MARcCH 2008

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital :  HK$300,000,000.00

Issued and fully paid : HK$202,753,763.75

Number of shares ;811,015,055

Class of shares : Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 par value
Voting rights . One vote per ordinary share

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS NO. OF NO. OF
SHAREHOLDERS % SHARES %
=gl 12 0.21 1,807 =
1,000 - 10,000 2,861 49.04 20,893,473 2.58
10,001 - 1,000,000 2,934 50.29 135,408,000 16.69
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 27 0.46 654,711,775 80.73
5,834 100.00 811,015,055 100.00

SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE HANDS OF THE PUBLIC

Based on the information available to the Company as at 11 March 2008, approximately 60.96% of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company is held by the public. Accordingly, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual issued by the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited has been complied with.
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As AT | | MARcCH 2008

TOP TWENTY SHAREHOLDERS

S/NO SHAREHOLDER’S NAME NO. OF SHARES %
1 HL BANK NOMINEES (S) PTE LTD 281,264,820 34.68
2 DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD 82,811,265 10.21
3 RAFFLES NOMINEES PTE LTD 75,615,044 9.32
4 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 60,773,265 7.49
5 UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD 36,193,000 4.46
6 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD 22,606,111 2,79
7 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD 14,495,000 1.79
8 MERRILL LYNCH (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 11,060,000 1.36
9 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 10,305,000 1.27
10 DMG & PARTNERS SECURITIES PTE LTD 8,052,000 0.99
11 DBSN SERVICES PTE LTD 8,025,000 0.99
12 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 7,335,000 0.90
13 LIM & TAN SECURITIES PTE LTD 3,981,000 0.49
14 TAN JEE MENG 3,665,000 0.45
15 CIMB-GK SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 3,471,000 0.43
16 KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE. LTD. 3,308,270 0.41
17 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (S) PTE LTD 3,220,000 0.40
18 HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD 2,571,000 0.32
19 MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (SINGAPORE) SECURITIES PTE LTD 2,369,000 0.29
20 ING NOMINEES (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD 2,250,000 0.28
TOTAL 643,370,775 79.32

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(as shown in the Company’s Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 11 March 2008)

Direct interest Deemed Interest
No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
Substantial Shareholders
Sun Guiji - - 316,533,904 39.03

* Mr Sun Guiji's deemed interest of 316,533,904 shares are held by nominee companies.
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PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

The following properties are owned by our Group:-

Location

Description

Mashanjia Cun, Mashanjia Town,
Yuhong District, Shenyang,
Liaoning Province, the PRC

Production premises for the
manufacturing of corn starch, corn
based products and

modified starch

No. 188 Centre Street,
Ke’ergin District, Tongliao,
Inner Mongolia, the PRC

Production premises for the
manufacturing of corn starch, and
corn-based products

No. 50 Huolinhe Street,
Ke’ergin District, Tongliao
Inner Mongolia, the PRC

Production premises for the
manufacturing of modified
starch products

Industrial Park of Wuzong
Development Zone, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Production premises for the
manufacturing of modified
starch products

Shenyang Agricultural New and
Hi-tech Development zone,
Shenyang, Liaoning Province,
the PRC

Production premises for the
manufacturing of ethanol products

Liangcun Development Zone,
Lecong Town,Shunde, Foshan,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

Production premises for the
manufacturing of modified products

South Side, Lin Hu Avenue,
Fenhu Economic Development
Zone Wuijiang City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC

Production premises for the
manufacturing of corn sweetener
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Tenure

50 years
(Up to January 2048)

50 years
(Up to June 2054)

50 years
(Up to June 2054)

50 years
(Up to September 2054)

50 years

(Up to July 2055)

NA

50 years
(up to August 2057)



NOTICE OF FOURTH ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Fourth Annual General Meeting of China Sun Bio-chem Technology Group
Company Ltd. will be held at Peach Garden @ 33 in The Executives’ Club, 65 Chulia Street, #33-01 OCBC Centre,
Singapore 049513, on Wednesday, 23 April 2008 at 3:30 p.m. for the purpose of transacting the following businesses:-
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and audited consolidated financial statements for the (Resolution 1)
financial year ended 31 December 2007 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To declare a final dividend of 0.7 Singapore cent per share, tax not applicable, amounting in (Resolution 2)
aggregate to S$5,677,105 for the financial year ended 31 December 2007.

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of RMB1,138,320 for the financial year (Resolution 3)
ended 31 December 2007.

4. To re-elect director retiring under Article 85(6) of the Articles of Association of the Company:- (Resolution 4)
(i) Dang Zhentai

5. To re-elect directors retiring under Article 86(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company:-

(i) Chong Wing Hong [See Explanatory Note 1] (Resolution 5)
(i) Lai Seng Kwoon [See Explanatory Note 2] (Resolution 6)
6. To re-appoint Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the (Resolution 7)

Directors to fix their remuneration.

7. To transact any other ordinary business that may be properly transacted at an Annual General Meeting.
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AS SPECIAL BUSINESS:-
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as ordinary resolution:
8. Authority to allot and issue shares up to 50 per centum (50%) of issued share capital

“That pursuant to Rule 806 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Limited, (Resolution 8)
authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to allot and issue shares or
convertible securities from time to time (whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise) and upon
such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such person as the Directors may in their
absolute discretion deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares and convertible
securities issued pursuant to such authority shall not exceed 50% of the issued share capital of the
Company for the time being, of which the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities
issued other than on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders of the Company shall not exceed
20% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being (the percentage of issued share
capital being based on the issued share capital at the time such authority is given after adjusting
for new shares arising from the conversion of convertible securities or employee share options on
issue at the time such authority is given and any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares)
and, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, such authority shall continue in
force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company or on the
date by which the next AGM is required by law to be held, whichever is earlier.”

[See Explanatory Note 3]

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Chew Kok Wye
Company Secretary
Singapore, 8 April 2008
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NOTES:

(i) A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting may appoint not more than two proxies to
attend and vote instead of him.

(i) Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each
proxy in the instrument appointing the proxies. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(i) If the member is a corporation, the instrument appointing the proxy must be under seal or the hand of an officer or
attorney duly authorised.

(iv) The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the office of the Singapore Share Transfer Agent, Tricor
Barbinder Share Registration Services (A division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.) at 8 Cross Street #11-00 PWC Building
Singapore 048424 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the above Meeting.

EXPLANATORY NOTES:

1. Mr Chong Wing Hong will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as a member of the Audit Committee
and will be considered independent for the purposes of Rule 704(8) of Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

2. Mr Lai Seng Kwoon will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as Chairman and a member of the Audit
Committee and will be considered independent for the purposes of Rule 704(8) of Listing Manual of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

3. The Ordinary Resolution 8 in item 8 is to authorise the Directors of the Company to issue shares up to 50% of the
Company’s issued share capital, with an aggregate sub-limit of 20% of the Company’s share capital for any issue of
shares not made on a pro-rata basis to shareholders of the Company.

NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of China Sun Bio-chem Technology
Group Company Ltd. (the “Company”) will be closed on 2 May 2008 for the preparation of dividend warrants.

Duly completed registrable transfers received by the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Barbinder Share Registration
Services (A division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.) at 8 Cross Street #11-00 PWC Building Singapore 048424 up to 5.00 p.m.
on 30 April 2008 will be registered to determine shareholders’ entitlements to such dividend.

Members whose Securities Accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited are credited with shares as at 5.00 p.m. on
30 April 2008 will be entitled to the proposed dividend.

Payment of the dividend, if approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 23 April 2008, will be
made on 13 May 2008.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Chew Kok Wye
Company Secretary
Singapore, 8 April 2008
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